
Agenda - Economy, Infrastructure and Skills 
Committee
Meeting Venue:
Committee Room 3 - Senedd
Meeting date: 17 October 2019
Meeting time: 11.15

For further information contact:
Robert Donovan
Committee Clerk
0300 200 6565 
SeneddEIS@assembly.wales

------

1 Public Procurement in the Foundational Economy - PSBs
(11.15-12.15) (Pages 1 - 30) 

Liz Lucas, Head of Customer and Digital Services, Caerphilly County Borough 
Council
Ian Evans, PSB Procurement, Caerphilly County Borough Council
John Paxton, Resources - Commissioning & Procurement Services, Cardiff 
Council
Richard Dooner, Programme Manager, Welsh Local Government Association

Attached Documents: 
EIS(5)-26-19(P1) Research briefing
EIS(5)-26-19(P2) Evidence from WLGA
EIS(5)-26-19(P2a) Further evidence from WLGA

2 Papers(s) to note 

2.1 Letter from the National Federation WI Wales Office
(Page 31) 

Attached Documents: 
EIS(5)-26-19(P3) Letter from the NFWI Wales Office

------------------------ Public Document Pack ------------------------



2.2 Correspondence from the Minister for Economy and Transport to Chair re 
ETOG Negotiations Sub Group Meeting

(Pages 32 - 33) 

Attached Documents: 
EIS(5)-26-19(P4) Correspondence from the Minister for Economy and 
Transport

Private de-brief 
(12.15-12.30)



Document is Restricted

Pack Page 1

Agenda Item 1



1 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

The Future of Local 
Government Collaborative 
Procurement in Wales 
 
Investing in Local Government Procurement to 
deliver for Future Generations 

EIS(5)-26-19(P2) 

Pack Page 12



 

2 
 

Welsh Local Government Association  
The WLGA’s primary purposes are to promote a better local government, its reputation 

and to support authorities in the development of policies and priorities which will improve 

public service and democracy.  

 

It represents the 22 local authorities in Wales with the 3 fire and rescue authorities and 3 

national park authorities as associate members. 

 

Welsh Local Government Association  

Local Government House 

Drake Walk 

Cardiff CF10 4LG  

 

029 2046 8600 | www.wlga.wales 

@WelshLGA 
 
 

Welsh Local Government Heads of Procurement Network  
The HoP network is an officer group facilitated by the WLGA.  Membership comprises a 

nominated lead officer from each organisation within the WLGA.  The HoP network 

supports collaborative procurement and the promulgation of good practice in 

procurement.   

 
 
Published: April 2019 
Copyright: Welsh Local Government Association 
ISBN: 

Pack Page 13



3 
 

Contents: 
 

Page Number 
 

Background          4 
 

  
Purpose of this Briefing Paper       4  

 
    

Key Principles          4 
         

   
Next Steps           7 
        
 

Contact Details          7 
        
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

   

 

Pack Page 14



 

4 
 

Background 
 

In September 2018 the First Minister published a written statement through which Local 
Government were informed that the National Procurement Service (NPS) would cease to 
operate in its current form. 
  
Welsh Government (WG) representatives have informed us of their intentions to form a 
smaller national contracting body which would sit within WG. They have proposed a pipeline 
which would result in them retaining 33 of the 61 contracts which Local Authorities would 
typically use with 28 being handed back to Local Government to deliver with a suggestion 
that 6 could be delivered through existing collaborative arrangements established and 
managed outside of Wales. It is intended that these changes would take effect from April 
2020. 
 
In response at the Heads of Procurement Network meeting on the 23rd January 2019 it was 
agreed that Local Authorities across Wales needed to jointly determine the future strategy 
and delivery arrangements for Local Government procurement collaboration in Wales. To 
progress this, it was decided that a self-facilitated workshop be held. This workshop was 
held on 14th March 2019.  

 
Purpose of this Briefing Paper 
 
This briefing paper provides a summary of the key principles which were agreed by the 
Network representatives who were present at the workshop. It is intended that this briefing 
paper is used to share these key principles with relevant stakeholders within the Network 
organisations to determine: 
 

• The level of support for the key principles across the Network member organisations 

• Any queries / concerns that Network member organisations may have 

It is intended that feedback will be discussed at our next Network meeting to be scheduled 
for June 2019.  
 
Although discussions are continuing to take place with WG it has been made clear that the 
development and implementation of this model is subject to agreement from the Network 
member organisations. 

 
Key Principles 
 

1. New arrangements must support an investment in Local Government Procurement 

to deliver for Future Generations 

Since the formation of the National Procurement Service (NPS) the sustained period of 
austerity has seen an erosion in the capacity, knowledge and expertise within Local 
Government procurement. Local Government spends £3.6bn per annum on third-party 

Pack Page 15



5 
 

goods, services and works and as well as ensuring this spend is managed efficiently, 
effectively and compliantly there is a growing expectation on the additional value that 
can be delivered to support the Wellbeing of Future Generations and development of the 
Foundational Economy. If Local Government is to take back delivery of collaborative 
procurement activity and maximise the opportunity to drive efficiency and savings and 
to deliver on wider policy expectations, it must invest in capacity and capability. 
 

2. Local Government collaborative procurement activity across Wales should be co-

ordinated through the WLGA Heads of Procurement Network 

Since the closure of the Welsh Purchasing Consortium on 31st March 2016, the Network 
has been the only all-Wales forum to support Local Government procurement 
collaboration and knowledge sharing. It was agreed that this Network should be retained 
and used to co-ordinate collaborative procurement activity and knowledge sharing across 
Local Government in Wales and with the wider public sector including Welsh 
Government.  
 

3. The Network to develop and ‘own’ an All-Wales Local Government Sourcing Plan and 

Contract Forward Plan 

To ensure effective co-ordination of collaborative contracting across Wales it was agreed 
that a Local Government Sourcing Plan is required. This would be used to determine 
whether contracts should be awarded and managed on a national, regional, sub-regional 
or local footprint and whether they should be LG specific or cross sector. It would also 
determine who would be responsible for delivery. The Network will consider the WG 
proposals as part of the work undertaken to develop the initial Sourcing Plan and 
Contract Forward Plan. 
 

Although it is expected that the Sourcing Plan will represent the majority view it is 

accepted that individual Local Authorities may have legitimate reasons to pursue a 

different sourcing approach. Where this is the case it would be reflected within the 

Sourcing Plan.  

  

4. Local Government to deliver collaborative contracts through three Regional Delivery 

Groups 

For the delivery of collaborative contracts by Local Government there was a clear 
preference expressed by the Network to establish regional delivery arrangements as it 
was considered this would: 
 

• Support a move towards regionally / locally focused sourcing strategies which 

could better support delivery of local business requirements and the development 

and use of regional / local supply chains,  

• Support regional economic development priorities, Future Generation initiatives 

and development of the Foundational Economy, and 

• Simplify organisational arrangements.  

Pack Page 16



 

6 
 

The model shown which would see the 
formation of three regional Delivery Groups 
was discussed and supported.   
 
In respect of the boundaries of the Regional 
Delivery Groups it was agreed they would be 
best established around the economic 
development and City Deal regions albeit 
with Ceredigion and Powys working with one 
or more of the regional delivery groups as 
opposed to establishing one for Mid-Wales. 
 
Ceredigion have already expressed a preference for being part of 
the South West Wales Delivery Group whereas Powys, due to their 
size and location may wish to participate in more than one. 
  
It was recognised that the decision to deliver arrangements on a 
national, regional or local level would need to be done on merit 
to ensure that we avoid a one size fits all approach. We would 
expect the regional delivery teams to work collaboratively and for 
regional teams to deliver national contracts where that was 
deemed most appropriate. 
 

5. Where appropriate contract delivery would be allocated and delivered through 

Regional Category Focused Centres of Expertise with flexibility to provide All-Wales 

contracts where appropriate 

Under the previous WPC arrangements contract delivery was allocated to Local 
Authorities on an ad hoc basis. Under the new proposed delivery model, it is preferred 
that contracts should be delivered through Regional Category Focused Centres of 
Expertise as this would allow a Local Authority delivery team to develop an in-depth level 
of expertise and knowledge of a particular category. The scope and allocation of these 
potential centres of expertise would be considered as part of the development of the LG 
Sourcing Plan.  
  

6. Contracts would continue to apply a levy which would be used to fund the retention 

and growth of procurement capacity and expertise within LG 

The Network considered a number of resourcing / funding models. The previous WPC 
had operated based on a Reciprocal model, but it was acknowledged that the reduction 
in Procurement capacity in Local Government over the past 5 years meant there would 
be no resource to deliver on this basis. By retaining the levy applied to the current NPS 
contracts it was acknowledged that this would provide a revenue stream which could be 
used to retain and potentially fund recruitment of additional resource which could also 
support initiatives to encourage new talent such as apprentices and student placement 
programmes. 

 
7. Levy would be managed on an Open Book basis and excess used to fund category 

development 

WLGA HoP Board

National Co-
ordination

South West Wales 
Delivery Group

North Wales 
Delivery Group

South East Wales 
Delivery Group

All-Wales LG 
Sourcing Strategy 

Pack Page 17



7 
 

 

There was a strong preference for a levy model, which was open book i.e. the contracting 

authority would only retain levy based on the level of pre-determined resource required 

to support delivery and management. As well as ensuring there were adequate resources 

in place it would allow any additional levy to be used to support category related 

initiatives including improving capability of end users and future generation initiatives. 

 

Next Steps 

 
At the workshop on the 13th March it was agreed that this Briefing Paper would be prepared 
to summarize the key agreed principles which could be used to by the Network 
representatives to brief senior officers / Members as required. This briefing paper has also 
been shared with Welsh Government representatives to facilitate on-going discussions to 
ensure an alignment of thinking in terms of future collaborative procurement activity. 
 
The feedback from Network member organisations will be formally considered at our next 
Network meeting which is scheduled to take place in late June 2019. However, we would 
encourage any specific concerns to be shared in advance so that we may consider a 
response. The Chair and WLGA procurement lead have also made a commitment to engage 
directly with member organisations as required. 
 
Following the Network meeting in June it is currently our intention that we will table a report 
to the next convenient Society of Welsh Treasurers (SWT) meeting and then to the WLGA 
Executive in [date]. 
 
In the meantime, a sub-group of the Network is starting to develop the All-Wales LG 
Sourcing Plan and Contract Forward Plan which will be used to further inform discussions 
on the formation of the Regional Delivery Groups and the proposed levy model. 
 

Contact Details: 

 
Facilitator:  Richard Dooner, Programme Manager, Welsh Local Government Association.   
Telephone:  07789371418  
E-mail:  Richard.dooner@wlga.gov.uk 
 
Chair:  Steve Robinson, Operational Manager, Head of Commissioning and Procurement, 
Resources - Commissioning and Procurement, City of Cardiff Council 
Telephone: 029 2087 3743  
E-mail: s.robinson@cardiff.gov.uk 
 
Vice Chair: Ian Evans, Procurement and Information Manager, Caerphilly County Borough 
Council 
Telephone:  01443 863157  
E-mail:  evansi1@caerphilly.gov.uk    
 

Pack Page 18

mailto:s.robinson@cardiff.gov.uk
mailto:evansi1@caerphilly.gov.uk


 www.wlga.wales
 @Welshlga  

1 

 

WLGA CONSULTATION RESPONSE on  
Public Procurement in the Foundational Economy 
 
20th August 2019 
 
INTRODUCTION 

 

1. The Welsh Local Government Association (WLGA) represents the 22 local authorities in Wales, 

and the three national park authorities and three fire and rescue authorities are associate 

members.   

2. The WLGA is a politically led cross-party organisation, with the leaders from all local authorities 

determining policy through the Executive Board and the wider WLGA Council. The WLGA also 

appoints senior members as Spokespersons and Deputy Spokespersons to provide a national 

lead on policy matters on behalf of local government.  

3. The WLGA works closely with and is often advised by professional advisors and professional 

associations from local government, however, the WLGA is the representative body for local 

government and provides the collective, political voice of local government in Wales.  

 

To assist with the inquiry into public procurement in the foundational economy, the Committee 

requested views on any or all of the following points: 

 
• What is the current position regarding the proportion of public contracts in Wales that go to 

Welsh suppliers? 

  

• To what extent could increasing ‘local procurement’ by the public sector create stronger local 

supply chains and build wealth in communities across Wales? 

  

• What is your view of the Welsh Government’s intended approach to increasing the amount of 

‘local procurement’ undertaken by the public sector in Wales (including how ‘local procurement’ 

will be defined and monitored; how the principles of sustainable and ethical procurement are 

being applied; and how the statutory goals set by the Well-Being of Future Generations (Wales) 

Act are being met)? 

   

• In what ways can local spend and collaborative procurement be increased and sustained while 

working within the EU procurement framework, whatever arrangements may be in place 

following Brexit? 

   

• Can you give examples of similar public procurement initiatives elsewhere in the UK and EU? 

 

 

Pack Page 19



 www.wlga.wales
 @Welshlga  

2 

 

RESPONSE 

We will respond to each of the committee’s questions in turn as follows: 

 

1.  What is the current position regarding the proportion of public contracts in Wales that go 

to Welsh suppliers? 

 

The proportion of Local Authority contracts in Wales that go to Welsh suppliers is determined by 

three things: 

 

• The availability of suitable suppliers in Wales. 

• The ability of suppliers in Wales to tender successfully. 

• The ability of Welsh Local Authorities to award to Welsh suppliers. 

 

If this seems like an over simplification, we might consider that the myriad factors affecting each 

of these things are far from simple. The relative absence of either; reduces the incidence of 

contract award to Welsh suppliers. 

  

We do have a mix of local, regional and national contracts which are awarded by Local 

Authorities, or organisations such as the National Procurement Service, operating on behalf of 

Local Authorities.   

 

These are all presently under review by the Heads of Procurement Network in Local 

Government.  The background to this and the key principles that have been established in taking 

local government procurement forward are outlined in the appended document “The Future of 

Local Government Collaborative Procurement in Wales - Investing in Local Government 

Procurement to deliver for Future Generations.” 

 

Among the ambitions in this document is that we use data to inform new procurement 

approaches and to innovate.  There is however no single data base that captures contracts to 

Welsh suppliers.  There is also a lack of data in some critical areas; about supply voids for 

example and about supply chains; including where the components or ingredients of the 

manufactured goods we buy originate from and what our strategic vulnerabilities are in the 

event of supply chain disruption.  It is unlikely that we can buy everything we need from within 

Wales; but we might buy more.  We should be able to know what’s available and where the 

gaps in supply are.  Much of our historic local knowledge has however been lost though 

depletion of experienced officers.  Strategically, no one really knows.  Contracting has been 

reliant on a process of advertisement, response and selection; though an open market 

extending across the European Union.  

 

 “You can tender what you like; but you never really know what you’ll get back and you are 

reliant on other people to respond.” 

 

For comparison purposes, a simple measure has been adopted by Welsh Government through 

Value Wales and the National Procurement Service.  The June 2015 Wales Procurement Policy 

Statement said: 

Pack Page 20



 www.wlga.wales
 @Welshlga  

3 

 

 

“We have seen expenditure won by Wales based suppliers rise from 35% in 2004 to 

55% in recent years and I am sure that there is potential for this to increase even further 

in the future.” 
 

This figure was calculated using the proportion of payments historically made by Welsh Local 

Authorities to recipients with Welsh Postcodes; through the main creditor systems.  This 

measure is maintained by Welsh Government and should be obtained from them. 

 

We have seen several equivalent figures quoted by individual organisations, including Local 

Authorities; some of which have achieved up to 100% in individual categories.  This information 

does not however actually tell us the proportion of public contracts in Wales that go to Welsh 

suppliers; it gives us an indication of where the payments go and whether those locations are in 

Wales.   

 

Payments data is a good global indicator of spend patterns; but of limited use in improving the 

foundational economy in Wales.  For this we need to know the forensics of supply chains and be 

able to predict future business needs; with knowledge of funding streams in order to anticipate 

where public money is going to be spent in advance.  Markets in Wales are underdeveloped 

when it comes to growing business and innovation. Procurement in Wales is not sufficiently 

resourced or informed to support improvement in this area. 

 

“Because a Council spent an amount on playground equipment this year doesn’t mean they will 

spend it next year.  The Welsh Housing Quality Standard programme is a key example whereby 

Welsh Government set a programme for upgrading homes over a period of time.  That is coming 

to an end so what happens now to the local contractors who have been working with us for 10 

years and we no longer have work for them?  New build should replace the work, but have we 

supported them to get ready for a different environment of work? I think not.  The resulting skills 

gap may result in money going outside of Wales.” 

 

Supplier Behaviours must also be considered if we are to understand what’s really going on 

within the aggregated figure of £3.3Bn Local Authority procurement.  For example: 

 

• Intermediaries or distributors might show as receiving large amounts of public service 

spend in Wales; but this is not ‘Welsh spend’ in relation to the foundation economy.  

Money spent here is invariably limited to local overheads; such as dealer margin and 

small-scale logistics.  Manufactured or processed goods typically originate from multiple 

sources, including Wales; but we have no way to tell which or in what proportion. The 

likelihood is that most manufactured goods will be sourced internationally; with the 

value to foundational economies occurring in the places of manufacture. 

 

• Product of Welsh material origin, where the added value (such as processing or 

manufacture) occurs outside Wales. We have little data; but know from experience that 

some Welsh dairy and meat products are supplied in this manner.  It is possible that 

there is a negative leverage in terms of foundation economies (in this example rural 

economies); but research is needed to substantiate this. 

Pack Page 21



 www.wlga.wales
 @Welshlga  

4 

 

 

• Services are defined as being consumed as they are produced; they account for a high 

proportion of spend and are generally local in provision.  For example; in the major 

spend areas of agency workers, paid care workers and supply teachers; most of the 

invoice value is converted to pay and local costs; which recirculates naturally into local 

economies. The amount extracted from Wales by organisations billing from outside 

Wales is typically limited to operating profit and central support costs, which can be 

relatively small; perhaps as low as 4-5%. 

 

• Exceptions to the local rule for services tend to highlight relative weaknesses in local 

supply, including gaps in skills and resourcing; being also indicative of historic Welsh 

reliance/deficiency or exploitative behaviour within supply chains.  For example: 

 

o Remote profit extraction in financial services such as banking and care home 

financing.  

o Knowledge-based services such as high-value engineering, financial or legal 

expertise where volume-based specialism is located out of Wales. 

o Transient, outsourced or otherwise non-resident labour. 

o Outsourced digital or data-based service 

 

Such weaknesses might be targeted for intervention and local supply chain 

development.  Services which are inwardly portable can equally be ported outward; 

given competitive local production. 

 

• Simple choice within the supply chain.  There can be considerable latitude in what a 

supplier can source for onward supply to Local Authorities.  Some would find it difficult 

to find products originating in Wales.  Others might find it easy; but see little necessity to 

do so.  Both instances can be influenced by simple interventions.  Like signposting to 

Welsh suppliers and motivating supplier choice of Welsh based provision.  These simple 

interventions might work just as well within our own organisations as they do within 

supply chains; because not all spend is controlled by procurement managers. 

 

“This is where the procurer can really influence via pre market engagement and being 

clear on outcomes.  Richard, we need to be clear with everyone the key to success is the 

ability and attitude of the procurement officer.  I am sorry to say this, but some people 

don’t get it.  Communication and dialogue is key in much of what we are trying to 

achieve and we just don’t have the right people.” 

 

• Large Networks.  Some high value spend occurs across networks; which include Wales; 

but are larger than Wales.  Telecommunications and Energy being ready examples.  

Spend within Wales or otherwise might simply reflect the administrative arrangements 

in place and be unrelated to activities in Wales and the Welsh economy. 

 

 

Pack Page 22



 www.wlga.wales
 @Welshlga  

5 

 

2. To what extent could increasing ‘local procurement’ by the public sector create stronger 

local supply chains and build wealth in communities across Wales? 

 

Local prosperity is best achieved where local suppliers of goods services and works are winning 

business; where they are thriving; where they adopt fair employment practices; where they re-

invest locally and where they retain wealth locally.  Research by Prof Karel Williams from 

Manchester University has articulated how this works. 

 

Locality can include the territories of neighbouring authorities; including Wales as a whole; but 

need not be exclusively in Wales. Prosperous neighbours do us no harm if we fairly share in their 

prosperity and our economic relationships do sometimes extend widely. Supply markets are 

defined less by political boundaries than the economic and practical considerations of business, 

such as the proximity of large population centres.  The nature of localism in procurement 

therefore needs to be determined locally, with commercial awareness; if a good and local match 

to business is to be made.  We need people with the appropriate skills, remit and ability to do 

this; the work needs to be core business driven and effective in each place; but not necessarily 

exclusive, as there is further benefit from collaborating. 

 

A proportion of this business can come from local public contracts and from the supply chains 

which support public contracts.  The measure of success is however not whether a greater or 

lesser percentage of Welsh local government spend is retained in Wales; it is how well 

businesses in Wales do overall, how well public services are delivered and how this translates 

into functioning communities.   

 

“It is about balance.   Some will stay small and rely on LG other will grow and expand into 
private sector or LG in England.  One size will not fit all.  A high-risk area is when a small 
business but all its eggs in one basket (one LA) and the business model or spend pattern of 
the LA changes then this business is in trouble.  We have strong evidence of this.” 

 

We might develop stronger supply chains in Wales by improving the ability of Welsh suppliers to 

supply customers outside Wales. To do this they need good business management; which they 

may not currently have.  The role of supplier development is therefore very important, and 

suppliers need trust and confidence that they will get the work.   We need to develop a Culture 

of development and self-finance, as business cannot rely on Local Authorities alone.   We might 

also support Welsh supply chains by ensuring a greater proportion of local expenditure remains 

here.  The most likely prospect of success comes from maintaining a virtuous balance; or at least 

in acting in a manner which does not create negative behaviours in others which could negate 

business revenue.  

 

“We need to recognise that some suppliers will not grow or collaborate.  Development 

mentality is a huge factor.”   

 

The point is to be more intelligent, in collaboration.  Determination of the Most Economically 

Advantageous Tender can and should include aspects of social value.  Supply chain resilience 

and local supply can be encouraged and supported through procurement behaviours that are 

managed, proportionate and appropriate to their subject matter.  What this means, in a 

practical sense, is having the right people in place with the necessary skills and motivations to 

Pack Page 23



 www.wlga.wales
 @Welshlga  

6 

 

use the right methods and make the right decisions.  The Heads of Procurement network is very 

motivated to support this.   

 

Local supply can also be encouraged by creating an environment which supports natural 

resilience and added value, such as one where future business is predictable and obtainable. 

 

Local Government procurement officers are also working with Welsh Government officials to 

help identify and develop the strengths of localities in Wales and to encourage specialisation in 

key areas.  An example of this is the pilot development of textiles manufacture in the South 

Wales Valleys through the Better Jobs Closer to Home project.  This ‘lost’ strength is being 

encouraged though the simple expedient of alerting (already contracted) stockists/distributors 

of Personal Protective Equipment to a Social Enterprise in Merthyr Tydfil.  This offers a better 

value alternative to importing stock from China; giving the distributors lower input costs, while 

developing the economy in a part of Wales that wants the work.  There are currently ten pilot 

projects in Better jobs Closer to Home. The programme is new and yet to deliver its full 

potential. 

 

Oversight is important.  No part of the supply chain is completely independent.   Hidden and 

non-supportive supply chain behaviours need to be identified and managed out.  Positive 

behaviours can be encouraged to grow through flexible contracts and innovation partnerships.   

 

“We must try new things, we must move away from the risk factor of getting it wrong on both 

sides of the fence.  What we need to remember is that small business could lose everything 

where as a LA officer may have questions asked but would they lose their livelihood?  Sometimes 

the risk is too great for the small supplier or even the big one. Again I have evidence I could 

share.” 

 

We can support this by embedding the principles of the Wellbeing of Future Generations Act 

into our procurement processes and by supporting the development of sustainable supply 

chains in Wales. This requires being alive to our future needs.  To acknowledge that our world is 

changing at pace and that we need to use data to inform and change the delivery mechanism; 

instead of relying on repetitive process. Also to have the skills and the engagement to listen and 

read the signs; to distinguish the real issues within the noise and clutter and to know what is 

needed address the real issues.  Then have the courage, the remit, to act, observe, learn and 

keep acting. 

 

On 24th May 2019 the WLGA Executive Board received a preliminary report from the Heads of 

Procurement Officer Network which proposed core principles to support this thinking.  The 

board broadly agreed the principles as given.  Among these was the principle that “Where 

appropriate contract delivery would be allocated and delivered through Regional Category 

Focused Centres of Expertise with flexibility to provide All-Wales contracts where appropriate.” 

 

Under the previous Local Government arrangements contract delivery was allocated to Local 

Authorities on the basis of the willing volunteer. Under the new proposed delivery model, it was 

agreed that contracts should be delivered through Regional Category Focused Centres of 

Expertise as this would allow a Local Authority delivery team to develop an in-depth level of 

Pack Page 24



 www.wlga.wales
 @Welshlga  

7 

 

expertise and knowledge of a particular category. The scope and allocation of these potential 

centres of expertise would be considered as part of the development of the Local Government 

Sourcing Plan.  

 

It is intended that this will enable improved visibility and predictability for Local Government 

procurement; to help resource planning and collaboration; to give potential suppliers visibility of 

opportunity; and to improve the prospects for supply chain continuity.  

 

This local depth of expertise need not be confined to the Local Authority.  Ideally, specialisms 

would follow a place-based approach to capability.  Some along established lines; because that’s 

where the skills are; but more potentially on a developmental basis.  Aligned to local strengths; 

whatever they may be. 

 

One such strength; which every part of Wales possesses one way or another; is the 

attractiveness of Wales as a place to live.  The growth of the remote workforce coupled with 

good technological infrastructure provides opportunities for Wales in attracting value adding 

remote workers.  Whether all of Wales has good technological infrastructure might be 

questioned; but it needs only be good enough in enough of the right places to make a 

difference.   

 

The 2007 Value Wales’ investigation in to Legal Services provision in Wales identified how small 

interventions can make a big difference to service based economies.  The work of Professor 

Iwan Davies at Swansea University School of Law had for example identified specialism could 

create value for individual lawyers; yet location in Wales invariably meant diversification; a 

work/life balance sacrifice that some were willing to make; but which was resulting in an overall 

flow of expertise (therefore knowledge-based value) away from Wales.  Enabling specialism 

within Wales might retain and attract small numbers of value adding knowledge-based workers 

in strategic roles.  Public procurement might be targeted to support this; both through 

procurement activity and through the development of the procurement profession itself.   

 

We need financial focus and spend focus so we know what is coming down the track.  We 

change so much and put people out of business due to the ad hoc budgeting Large volume of 

expenditure thrust upon the markets at the end of the year, it’s not good and gives no security.  

 

 

3.  What is your view of the Welsh Government’s intended approach to increasing the 

amount of ‘local procurement’ undertaken by the public sector in Wales (including how 

‘local procurement’ will be defined and monitored; how the principles of sustainable and 

ethical procurement are being applied; and how the statutory goals set by the Well-Being 

of Future Generations (Wales) Act are being met)? 

 

We in Local Government consider ‘Local’ to be something multiplied twenty-two times; Welsh 

Government might see it as once for Wales.  However; we have similar ambitions to increase 

the amount of local procurement undertaken by the public sector in Wales.    

 

Pack Page 25



 www.wlga.wales
 @Welshlga  

8 

 

We do need to take care that localism is ‘done by’ and not ‘done to’ Local Government.  In 

procurement and in parallel with other sectors such as digital and economic regeneration, 

planning and education. 

 

Welsh Government can help this by working with us to maintain the environment where good 

things can happen.   It can also help with central support, where central support is the right and 

proportionate thing.  In these respects, the statutory goals set by the Well-Being of Future 

Generations (Wales) Act are complementary to those of Local Authorities.  It is a journey; but 

given a continuing positive approach to implementation; we should continue to make the 

changes envisioned by the Act. 

 

Local Government can help this by facilitating a mutually supportive, network approach; in 

collaboration with Welsh Government and other partners, including the WFG Commissioners 

officials.  We have complementary roles. This requires being complementary and mutually 

supportive. 

 

The WLGA, with Heads of Procurement in Local Government is undertaking a programme of 

reform which embeds support for the foundational economy at its core.  We ask Welsh 

Government to continue to support this programme positively. Our positive approach to 

meeting the principles of sustainable and ethical procurement are being met by: 

 

• Take of the guidance provided for our use by Welsh Government 

• Collaboration 

• Funding that supports the foundation economy and allows the sector to grow.   

• Looking at alternative procurement methods and contracts to stop the over reliance on 

frameworks. 

 

• In what ways can local spend and collaborative procurement be increased and sustained while 

working within the EU procurement framework, whatever arrangements may be in place 

following Brexit? 

 

Local Councils are foundational 

Continuing reduction to Local Government budgets has the greatest impact upon the 

foundational economy and upon Local Governments ability to sustain those suppliers who serve 

it.  Wales’ councils are the foundations of our communities. They provide vital everyday local 

services, from schools, to housing, to social care, to local transport. They provide a local 

democratic voice to Wales’ diverse communities. In doing so, councils and the services: 
 

• protect and the support the most vulnerable in our communities 

• Tackle inequalities within and across Wales’ communities 

• Promote a fairer Wales through inclusive growth 

Councils are the economic bedrock of Wales: 

• employing over 10% of the Welsh workforce and educating and training our future 
workforce 

• spending £3.5bn on goods and services in national and local economies 

Pack Page 26



 www.wlga.wales
 @Welshlga  

9 

 

• promoting ambitious economic growth and regional regeneration across all corners of 
Wales. 
 

Local services create opportunities for every citizen which help sustain and strengthen our 
communities. Local services have borne the brunt of austerity; core grant funding has 
reduced by 20% after adjusting for inflation by 2019-20. Core funding has fallen by 35%, if 
you don’t include schools funding, as is the case in English local government. 
 
Although schools and social care have been relatively protected, this has not been enough to 
keep up with demand.  
 
Other local services, those services that are most visible and valued by our communities 
have been devastated. A decade of cuts has seen the loss of assets, facilities and services 
that have been a core part of communities for generations; the risk is that once such assets 
and services are lost, they are unlikely ever to be replaced. 
 
Our services are preventative services, they have an impact on community safety and health 
and wellbeing. Our services are the local health service that can prevent costly burden on 
the National Health Service.  

 

Legislative Framework  

We can do what we need to do within the present procurement framework.  In many ways, 

the ground is already prepared.  We know what to do and are in the process of developing a 

local authority sourcing plan.  The main limiting factor is the availability of suitable people 

who can be assigned to the task.   

 

Improvement Actions 

If we are to increase the incidence of local spend, we must understand the supply voids, 

action a programme of change in funding and ensure we engage with all and not just the 

special few (suppliers) who have influence. 

 

The high-level actions are to: 

 

o Improve the availability of suitable suppliers in Wales. 

o Improve the ability of suppliers in Wales to do business with us. 

o Improve the ability of Welsh Local Authorities to award to Welsh suppliers. 

 

We can Improve availability of suitable suppliers in Wales by better use of data.  By 

identification of supply voids.  By articulating future needs to those best able to provide for 

those needs, in Wales.  By creating the business and financial environment able to provide 

for these needs sustainably.  

 

We can improve the ability of suppliers in Wales to do business with us by making tenders 

easier to do and easier to win; by providing viable alternatives to tendering; particularly 

within the low risk to procure categories such as social care.  By minimising process wastes.  

By implementing electronic process and using digital tools. By telling suppliers what we 

need, what they’re doing right’ where they’re going wrong. We might instigate a ‘passport 

Pack Page 27



 www.wlga.wales
 @Welshlga  

10 

 

to trade in wales’ so that suppliers are assessed once a year for contract to a certain value.  

Looking after the small businesses; taking away red tape.  

 

We can Improve the ability of Welsh Local Authorities to award to Welsh suppliers by 

ensuring our own procedure rules are up to date and supportive of this objective.  By 

providing modern and effective means to measure value. By ensuring that we have people 

with the capacity and capability in place.  Understanding what value is and being able to 

measure it effectively on the basis of the core business proposition, rather than notional 

‘savings.’  Ensuring that audit operates as a force for good; supportive of good practice – it 

would be helpful if WAO could do provide something on the value associated with local 

supply – something along the lines of a view on the LGA’s TOMS (more on this below) 

perhaps?  All of this is much wider than procurement it is a culture change and thought 

process that people must believe in, including S151 officers and Public Service Leadership 

 

Complaints about unreasonable rules or strange behaviours in procurement are more often 

about a shortage of knowledgeable practitioners; than by anything inherent in the rules.  

One of the perverse symptoms of austerity is the loss of our most experienced staff; many of 

whom have retired or moved on but not been replaced on a like for like basis.  While junior 

staff can step up and fill some of the need; this needs to be supported by the few senior 

people remaining and their efforts are by necessity limited helping with to the more pressing 

local priorities.  A lack of investment in skills is not helping. Where influence within an 

organisation has gone; strategic thinking and challenge needs to come back. For many 

people, procurement is still labelled ‘process’ and perhaps considered a necessary evil.  It 

needs to be quite different - about strategy, outcomes and the Future. 

 

Welsh Government’s own Better Jobs Closer to Home project sets a good example for what 

can be done. We can do more of its Preston-like supply chain interventions.  To do this we 

need better data, it needs to be more dynamic and proactive. 

 

“The trouble is, they give me exactly what I ask for and no more.  What I really want 

is someone to look at the data, see what I need; then tell me what that is.” 

 

4.  Can you give examples of similar public procurement initiatives elsewhere in the UK and 

EU? 

 

Preston is the name associated with procurement which supports Foundational 

Economies.  This local authority deserves due recognition.  The present ambition in 

Wales is however unprecedented.  We can refer to good practice in Preston; but little of 

it is entirely new.  Much of the Preston Model reflects similar activities which have 

already been undertaken in Wales, for similar reasons, without wider recognition. The 

present development of a Local Government Sourcing Plan for Wales is for example 

being undertaken to support both the development of stronger foundational economies 

and better procurement in Local Government.   

 

The Local Government Association supports similar public procurement initiatives in 

England.  We are very interested in what they do and thanks to the LGA’s kind 

Pack Page 28



 www.wlga.wales
 @Welshlga  

11 

 

fellowship; actively participate where we can.  Examples of this are the Local 

Government National Procurement Strategy (LGNPS) and the Themes Outcomes and 

Measures System (TOMS).  The LGNPS measures Local Authorities procurement 

performance against agreed measures.  There’s nothing new in this, except that the 

LGNPS measures against the given priorities for each organisation; not a benchmark of 

‘best.’  This better recognises that procurement is there to support the organisation; that 

what matters is to be very good in its core proposition; the rest only needs to be good 

enough.  The Heads of Procurement network in Local Government is participating in this 

English initiative on a pilot basis.  TOMS is helping English Authorities to measure their 

performance in relation to the Social Value Act and to improve the evaluation of value in 

individual tenders.  It is true that the Wellbeing of Future Generations Act here is more 

ambitious; its provisions are broader; they tend to apply also to the pre-procurement 

and contract management processes which determine what provisions look like and 

what procurement seeks to do in the first place.  There are nevertheless aspects of 

TOMS which are useful in the Welsh context.  Among these is the provision of Social 

Value Proxies; which provide financial measures for social value.  These can be used in 

tendering to provide a more rounded evaluation of value from the whole local authority 

perspective.  TOMS are adapting all the time.   One recent innovation is an enhanced 

proxy value where jobs are created in specific areas of deprivation; or among members 

of society for whom work is particularly hard to get. 

 

Public Banking can support the development of local supply and the availability of 

suitable suppliers in Wales.  In support of existing resources and as a locally motivated 

financial alternative.  There is a wealth of evidence from Europe, Germany; where public 

banks support a thriving ‘Mittelstand,’ middle sized enterprises which form the mainstay 

of the German economy.  WLGA officers have met with Dr Richard Werner of De 

Montford University; who makes a compelling case for similar initiative here. There is 

also evidence from the USA.  The author and campaigner Ellen Brown visited the UK, 

including Wales.  This led to initiatives from the RSA and the establishment of a Welsh 

volunteer group which helped form Banc Cambria.  This new Banc essentially addresses 

some immediate concerns around high street bank flight.  The wider economic ambitions 

of a public bank are however at risk of being forgotten in the scrabble for Welsh 

Government funding and the excitement of establishing the new organisation. There is a 

commendable tenacity among some of the individuals involved in Banc Cambria; but 

there is a risk that their voices could be marginalised, and the greater opportunity lost.  

The relevance to public procurement is in the availability of patient and affordable 

finance to suppliers in Wales; and the subsequent confidence to invest in the Welsh 

economy to create the ‘missing middle’ of medium sized enterprises which form the 

backbone of the economy in other countries. 

 

Academic Support in Wales has been strong; thanks to an innovative academic sector 

which looks to Welsh Government and Welsh policies in its research.  We can look to our 

own Welsh academic initiatives for answers to our questions around procurement and 

the economy.  The Heads of Procurement Network in Local Government has been 

particularly interested in the recent procurement related work of the Wales Centre for 

Public Policy; led by Professors Steve Martin and Kevin Morgan.  WLGA officers have also 

Pack Page 29



 www.wlga.wales
 @Welshlga  

12 

 

been involved with the Foundational Economy Network Wales, facilitated by WISERD 

and led by Professor Karel Williams of Manchester University.  Professor Pedro Telles has 

worked with Local Authorities on opening access to procurement for small businesses; 

with further initiative scheduled, supported by the Federation of Small Business.  We 

also recognise the work Professor Dermott Cahill at Bangor University has done as lead 

for the Institute for Competition & Procurement Studies; in Westminster and 

internationally.  Due attention is being paid to the wealth of experience we are able to 

draw upon; but there is more work to be done; specifically, in developing a Welsh Way 

and ensuring its effective implementation.   

 
 

 
FOR FURTHER INFORMATION PLEASE CONTACTS 
 
Richard Dooner, Programme Manager 

Richard.dooner@wlga.gov.uk 
 
Welsh Local Government Association 
Local Government House 
Drake Walk 
Cardiff 
CF10 4LG 
 
Tel: 029 2046 8600 

 

Pack Page 30



Incorporated in England & Wales as a Company Limited by Guarantee – No. 251 7690 Charity Registration No. 803793 VAT No. 239 4128 57. 

Chair: Lynne Stubbings   Honorary Treasurer: Julia Roberts   General Secretary: Jana Osborne   Pennaeth Swyddfa Cymru/Head of Wales Office: Rhian Connick 

 

Ffederasiwn Cenedlaethol 

Sefydliad y Merched 

19 Heol yr Eglwys Gadeiriol 

Caerdydd CF11 9HA 

T: +44 29 2022 1712 
 

NFWI Wales Office 

19 Cathedral Road 

Cardiff CF11 9HA 

walesoffice@nfwi-wales.org.uk 

www.thewi.org.uk 

 
 
 
 

 

 

 

2 October 2019 

 
Russell George AM 
Chair of Economy, Infrastructure and Skills Committee 

National Assembly for Wales 

Tŷ Hywel 
Cardiff Bay 
CF99 1NA 
 
 
Dear Russell George AM 

WI campaign – Get on Board for a better bus service 

I am contacting you to inform you about a new campaign by the WI to address the decline in local bus 
services.  This campaign is in response to a resolution passed by members at the 2019 Annual Meeting of the 
NFWI calling for the importance of buses to recognised at both local and national levels. 

Bus services play a vital role in ensuring communities remain sustainable, reduce social isolation and ensure 
access to employment, education, local facilities and health services. Cuts to bus services disproportionately 
impact on women. Public transport is also key to cutting our carbon emissions and tackling climate change. 

This campaign seeks to raise awareness of the importance of local bus services and to empower members, 
WIs and federations to take action to support buses in their own local communities, to highlight their value 
and to push for viable and sustainable services. 

As part of the campaign, the NFWI will be gathering members’ views and experiences of using bus services 
including the impact of cuts to services and examples of good practice in delivering services in innovative 
ways. 

I hope that our campaign is of interest to you and please do get in touch should you, or your support staff, 
require any additional information. 
 

 

 

Rhian Connick      
Head of NFWI-Wales 
  
 
 

Pack Page 31

Agenda Item 2.1



Ken Skates AC/AM 
Lesley Griffiths AC/AM 
Kirsty Williams AC/AM 
 

 

Bae Caerdydd • Cardiff Bay 
Caerdydd • Cardiff 

CF99 1NA 

Canolfan Cyswllt Cyntaf / First Point of Contact Centre:  

0300 0604400 

Gohebiaeth.Lesley.Griffiths@llyw.cymru 
                Correspondence.Lesley.Griffiths@gov.wales 

 

Rydym yn croesawu derbyn gohebiaeth yn Gymraeg.  Byddwn yn ateb gohebiaeth a dderbynnir yn Gymraeg yn Gymraeg ac ni fydd 

gohebu yn Gymraeg yn arwain at oedi.  
 

We welcome receiving correspondence in Welsh.  Any correspondence received in Welsh will be answered in Welsh and 

corresponding in Welsh will not lead to a delay in responding.   

Ein cyf/Our ref MA/P/KS/5090/19 
 
 
Russell George AM 

Chair 

Economy, Infrastructure and Skills Committee 

National Assembly for Wales 
Cardiff Bay 
Cardiff 
CF99 1NA 
 
 

11 October 2019 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Dear Russell,  
 
We wish to provide advanced notice of a quadrilateral meeting with the Secretary of 
State (SoS) for Business, Energy and Industrial Strategy (BEIS) on 17 October 2019.  
 
Representation at the meeting is expected as follows: 
 

 UK Government - Andrea Leadsom MP, Secretary of State for Business, Energy 
and Industrial Strategy. 

 Scottish Government - Rosanna Cunningham MP, Cabinet Secretary for 

Environment, Climate Change and Land Reform.  

 Northern Ireland – Unknown, official representation.  
 
The meeting was due to take place on 07 October but was cancelled by the Secretary 
of State at short notice. We are deeply frustrated by this and will be writing to the 
Secretary of State to express our frustration.  

At the meeting the Welsh Government will be represented by the Minister for Economy 
and Transport and the Minister for Environment, Energy and Rural Affairs. The Ministers 
will raise and cross-cutting issues relevant to the Education portfolio.   

Pack Page 32

Agenda Item 2.2

mailto:Gohebiaeth.Lesley.Griffiths@llyw.cymru
mailto:Correspondence.Lesley.Griffiths@gov.wales


It has been agreed that the draft agenda will include discussion on how we prepare 
business and citizens for Brexit, the role of the UK in tackling climate change and the 
Industrial Strategy, in particular the place-based approach. We will also be highlighting 
the need to strengthen and maintain Ministerial engagement with BEIS through more 
robust inter-governmental structures necessary to ensure the devolution settlement is 
protected and impacts on Welsh citizens and businesses is limited.  

Following the meeting, we will produce a Written Statement which will provide members 
with a summary of the issues discussed and an outline of the positions advanced by the 
Welsh Government. 
 

 
 
Ken Skates AC/AM 

Gweinidog yr Economi a Thrafnidiaeth  
Minister for Economy and Transport 

 
Lesley Griffiths AC/AM 

Gweinidog yr Amgylchedd, Ynni a Materion Gwledig 
Minister for Environment, Energy and Rural Affairs   
 

 
 
Kirsty Williams AC/AM 

Y Gweinidog Addysg  
Minister for Education 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Pack Page 33


	Agenda
	1 Public Procurement in the Foundational Economy - PSBs
	EIS(5)-26-19(P2) Evidence from WLGA
	EIS(5)-26-19(P2a) Further evidence from WLGA

	2.1 Letter from the National Federation WI Wales Office
	2.2 Correspondence from the Minister for Economy and Transport to Chair re ETOG Negotiations Sub Group Meeting

